
 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Ryan Sellers, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: March 8, 2022 

 
SUBJECT:  Planning Commission Agenda Packet  

 
 

The following item is scheduled for consideration at the Planning Commission meeting on 
Tuesday, March 8, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Commission Meeting Room, at Decatur City 
Hall at 509 North McDonough Street: 
 
• Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers, Dillard Sellers Attorneys at Law, has requested a 

change in land use designation from RL – Low Density Residential to I – Institutional for 
property at 465 Clairemont Avenue.  
 

• Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers, Dillard Sellers Attorneys at Law, has requested a 
rezoning from R-60 – Single Family Residential to I – Institutional for property at 465 
Clairemont Avenue.   

 
• Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers, Dillard Sellers Attorneys at Law, has requested a 

conditional use permit to operate a daycare at 465 Clairemont Avenue.   
 
• Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal, Battle Law LLC, has requested a 

change in land use designation from RL – Low Density Residential to RM – Medium 
Density Residential for properties at 614, 618 and 622 East Lake Drive.  

 
• Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal, Battle Law LLC, has requested a 

rezoning from R-60 – Single Family Residential to RM-43 – Multiple Family Residential 
for properties at 614, 618 and 622 East Lake Drive.   

 
• Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal, Battle Law LLC, has requested a 

special exception to canopy coverage standards for affordable housing for properties at 
614, 618 and 622 East Lake Drive. 
 
 
 



 

City of Decatur 

Planning Commission 

 

March 8, 2022 Meeting  

AGENDA 
 

Decatur City Hall 

City Commission Room 

509 North McDonough Street 

7:00 PM 

 

  

Consistent with requirements of O.C.G.A. §50-14-1(e)(1) this agenda was posted by Tuesday, February 22, 2022.  

This meeting will be held in-person. Members of the public wishing to participate during the “Public Comment” 
portion of the meeting may attend the meeting in one of two ways: 

1. Attend in-person by coming to Decatur City Hall, 509 N. McDonough Street. A temperature check and wearing 
of a face covering are required for entry into the building. 

2. Register in advance at https://www.decaturga.com/bc-pc/page/planning-commission-27. After registering, you 
will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the meeting. You may also participate by 
phone by calling (929) 205-6099 and entering the meeting ID (the 11-digit number shown in the Zoom registration 
link). 
  
NOTE – This meeting will utilize virtual meeting technology. We cannot guarantee it will operate as planned. If 
your participation must be a matter of public record, attend the meeting in person or email your comments to 
Ryan Sellers, Senior Planner, at ryan.sellers@decaturga.com by 5:00 p.m. on Monday, March 7th.  

Members of the public may also view the live broadcast of the Decatur Planning Commission meeting 
at https://www.decaturga.com/citycommission/page/streaming-video 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Old Business: 

 

a. Approval of Minutes from February 8, 2022 regularly scheduled meeting.  

 

III.  New Business: 

 

A. Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers, Dillard Sellers Attorneys at Law, has requested a change in land use 

designation from RL – Low Density Residential to I – Institutional for property at 465 Clairemont Avenue.  

B. Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers, Dillard Sellers Attorneys at Law, has requested a rezoning from R-60 – 

Single Family Residential to I – Institutional for property at 465 Clairemont Avenue.   

C. Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers, Dillard Sellers Attorneys at Law, has requested a conditional use permit to 

operate a daycare at 465 Clairemont Avenue.   

D. Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal, Battle Law LLC, has requested a change in land use 

designation from RL – Low Density Residential to RM – Medium Density Residential for properties at 614, 618 

and 622 East Lake Drive.  

E. Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal, Battle Law LLC, has requested a rezoning from R-60 – 

Single Family Residential to RM-43 – Multiple Family Residential for properties at 614, 618 and 622 East 

Lake Drive.   

F. Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal, Battle Law LLC, has requested a special exception to canopy 

coverage standards for affordable housing for properties at 614, 618 and 622 East Lake Drive. 

IV. Other Business 

V. Adjournment  

mailto:ryan.sellers@decaturga.com
https://www.decaturga.com/citycommission/page/streaming-video


City of Decatur 
Planning Commission 

 
February 8, 2022 Meeting 

MINUTES (Draft) 
 

 
Members present: Mike Travis (Acting Chair), Gregory Chilik, Lori Leland-Kirk, Todd Ohlandt, Joe 

Greco, Harold Buckley, Jr. (Chair and present in the audience) 
Members absent: Rachel Cogburn 
 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
  

The City of Decatur Planning Commission met on February 8, 2022 in a regular meeting. At 7:00 
p.m., a quorum of in-person members were present and Acting Chair Travis called the meeting to order. 
He provided introductions and an overview of the procedures of the meeting.  

 
 
II.  OLD BUSINESS 
  

Approval of the January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting minutes. 
 
 Acting Chair Travis read the first item of the agenda to approve the January 11, 2022 Regular 
Meeting minutes. Mr. Chilik moved and Mr. Greco seconded to approve the minutes with one minor 
change from Ms. Leland-Kirk. There was one abstention from Mr. Ohlandt. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Andrew Rutledge, Office of Design LLC, on behalf of Eri Levine, has requested a 
special exception from Section 5.3.3.B. of the UDO to allow surface parking along and 
within 60’ of the public street for property located at 104-108 Church Street.  
 

Acting Chair Travis read the first new business item into the record. Mr. Andrew Rutledge, 
Office of Design LLC, 619 East College Ave, on behalf of Eri Levine, presented the request for a special 
exception from Section 5.3.3.B. to allow surface parking along and within 60’ of the public street.  
 
 Mr. Rutledge stated that they are looking to redevelop this property with a new film editing 
studio. He stated that there is an existing shared driveway that runs along the side of the property that they 
would retain and create some angle parking along the side of the building.  
 
 In response to Acting Chair Travis, Mr. Rutledge stated that the handicap spot would be the only 
surface parking along and within 60’of the public street. He noted that over 50% of the existing lots 
around this property has surface parking right up against the sidewalk. He added that their surface parking 
area would have a greenspace buffer and that the parking would be on the side of the building opposed to 
being directly in front of the building like most of the older buildings along Church Street.  
 
 In response to Ms. Leland-Kirk, Mr. Rutledge stated that there would be four access points into 
the building. He added that you could enter through the back or the front door access point, which would 
provide for ADA accessibility. He confirmed that it would still have a front door presence facing the 
street.  
 



City of Decatur 
Planning Commission 
February 8, 2022 Meeting Minutes (draft) 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 Acting Chair Travis opened the public hearing. Residents were requested to use the chat function 
to record their comments, verbally share their comments, or email Ryan Sellers, Senior Planner, so that he 
could read those into the record.  
 
 Mr. John Leake, 255 W Parkwood Rd, spoke neither in support or opposition. He informed the 
commissioners of an accident between a cyclist and a motorist, in which the cyclist was killed as the 
motorist opened his front door. He asked not to obstruct Church Street in any way that is possible to 
avoid.   
 

There being no public comment, Acting Chair Travis closed the public comment period. 
 
In response to Mr. Leake’s concern, Acting Chair Travis reassured that this request would not 

have any adverse effect to bicycle pedestrian pathways or existing conditions along the street.   
 
Mr. Chilik made an observation that the design presented reflects the spirit of the Downtown 

Decatur Special Pedestrian Area standards. He added that there is no obstruction between the front door 
and the sidewalk. He added that the handicap spot does encroach upon the 60’ but not in a way that goes 
against the standards thus he does not see any reason to oppose this request.   

 
Mr. Greco stated that the proposed parking seemed like a good, reasonable solution that is in the 

spirit of the general walkability and avoiding surface parking in front of buildings. 
 
In response to Acting Chair Travis, Mr. Sellers, Senior Planner, stated that the Planning 

Commission could approve this special exception subject to the condition that if any damage is done to 
the streetscape, it would be on the developer to repair and/or replace.  

 
In response to Acting Chair Travis, Mr. Rutledge stated that they would be tying into the existing 

sanitary because they are buying credits. He added that they may have to remove one tree but they would 
plant a new one or place the old one back in. He also added that they would repair any of the streetscape 
that get damaged during construction. 
 

Ms. Leland-Kirk agreed with Mr. Chilik that she thought the side parking has a minimal impact 
on the streetscape and is keeping with the intent of the Downtown Decatur Special Pedestrian Area.   
 

On a motion by Ms. Leland-Kirk, seconded by Mr. Greco, the requested special exception was 
unanimously recommended for approval. Motion carried, 5-0. 

 
The recommendation is to be forwarded to the City Commission for consideration and action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Decatur 
Planning Commission 
February 8, 2022 Meeting Minutes (draft) 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS   
 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT - There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
Consistent with the requirements of O.C.G.A. §50-14-1(e)(2)(B) these minutes were approved at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting on March 8, 2022 and made part of the record. 

 
 
  (draft)    
Ryan Sellers, Senior Planner 
Acting Secretary to the Planning Commission 

 
 













































 

 

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 

 
The Planning Commission will meet on March 8, 2022. The following staff report has been 
prepared for an application that was received by the Planning and Zoning Division of the 
Community and Economic Development Department.  
 
Applicant:   Smarties Academy c/o Julie Sellers 
 
Property Address:    465 Clairemont Avenue 
 
Parcel ID:      18 006 03 105 
 
Present Land Use Category: RL – Low Density Residential 
 
Proposed Land Use Category: I – Institutional 
 
Present Zoning District:  R-60 – Single Family Residential   
 
Proposed Zoning District:  I – Institutional  
 
1. The subject property is an approximate 2.55 acre parcel (111,078 SF) currently owned 

by The Southeastern Synod of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. The subject 
property is currently zoned R-60 – Single Family Residential.  The site currently 
contains the church campus for the Lutheran Church of The Messiah.    

2. The applicant, Smarties Academy, currently owns and operates a day care and early 
childhood education center within the church campus buildings.   

3. In anticipation of the church use being discontinued, the applicant would like to 
continue to use this property and transition the day care use from an accessory use to 
the primary use in the event that the church ceases operations and is no longer the 
primary use.   

4. In order to achieve the proposed use, the applicant is seeking to amend the land use 
map from RL – Low Density Residential to I – Institutional, as well as rezone the subject 
property from R-60 – Single Family Residential to I – Institutional.  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
465 Clairemont Ave 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 

                   

5. Per the Allowed Use Table in Section 6.2. of the UDO, day cares are allowed within the I 
– Institutional district as a conditional use, thus the applicant is also seeking a 
Conditional Use Permit. 

6. The applicant is requesting a rezoning, a land use amendment, and a conditional use 
permit.  All of these request requires the approval of the City Commission with 
recommendation from the Planning Commission.   

7. Abutting properties to the north and west are zoned R-60 – Single Family Residential. 
Properties to the south and east are zoned RM-43 – Multiple Family Residential.  
   

8. Other requirements.  If approved, the project remains subject to current local life safety 
and fire codes, site development, local soil erosion, drainage, and tree preservation 
ordinances. 

 
Changing the land use designation of a property 

9. The following standards, per Section 11.2.2.F.2. of the UDO, shall be considered when an 
amendment to the comprehensive land use plan is requested: 
 

1) Does the proposed amendment permit uses that are suitable in view of the use 
and development of adjacent and nearby property? 
 

2) Does the proposed amendment adversely affect the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property? 

 
3) Will the proposed amendment result in uses which will or could cause an 

excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, 
utilities, or schools? 

 
4) Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and 

development of the property which, because of their impact on the public health, 
safety, morality and general welfare of the community, give supporting grounds 
for either approval or disapproval of the proposed amendment? 

 

 

 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
465 Clairemont Ave 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 

                   

Rezoning a property 
 

10. The following standards, per Section 11.2.2.F.1. of the UDO, shall be considered when a 
change to the zoning map is requested: 
 

1) Does the zoning proposal permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and 
development of adjacent and nearby property? 
 

2) Does the zoning proposal adversely affect the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property? 

3) Does the property to be affected by the zoning proposal have a reasonable 
economic use as currently zoned? 

 
4) Does the zoning proposal result in a use which will or could cause an excessive 

or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or 
schools? 

 
5) Does the zoning proposal conform with the policy and intent of the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan? 
 
6) Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and 

development of the property which, because of their impact on the public health, 
safety, morality and general welfare of the community, give supporting grounds 
for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal? 

 

Conditional Use Permit 
 

11.  The following standards, per Section 11.2.3.G.  of the UDO, shall be considered when a 
conditional use permit is requested: 
 

1) Whether the proposed use is suitable in view of the use and development of 
adjacent and nearby property. 
 

2) Whether the proposed use is consistent with the requirements of the zoning 
district in which the use is proposed to be located. 

 
3) Whether the proposed use adversely affects the existing use or usability of 

adjacent or nearby property. 
 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
465 Clairemont Ave 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 

                   

4) Whether the proposed use results in a use which will or could cause an excessive 
or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities or other 
public facilities. 

 
5) Whether there is adequate ingress and egress to the subject property, including 

evaluation of the traffic impact of the proposed use relative to street capacity 
and safety of public streets and nearby pedestrian uses. 

 
6) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions which, because of their 

impact on the public health, safety, morality and general welfare of the 
community, give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the 
proposed use. 

 
 

  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
465 Clairemont Ave 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 

                   

Exhibit A 
Location Map 

 

 
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
465 Clairemont Ave 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 

                   

Exhibit B 
Existing Zoning Map 

 

   
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
465 Clairemont Ave 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 

                   

Exhibit C 
Existing Land Use Map 

 

 
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 



O-22-Z-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE  
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  

FOR A DAY CARE USE  
IN AN INSTITUTIONAL ZONING DISTRICT LOCATED AT 

465 CLAIREMONT AVENUE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission has considered the proposed application, 
plans and other information submitted by the applicant, as well as comments by the applicant and 
interested residents at public hearings; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission finds the information submitted with the 

application and presented at the public hearings establishes that the proposed development meets 
the standards established in Article 5 and Article 11 of the Unified Development Ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission desires to approve a conditional use permit 
for a day care on the property located at 465 Clairemont Avenue. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commissioners of the City of 

Decatur, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by authority of the same, as follows: 
  
 A day care use at 465 Clairemont Avenue, identified on the attached exhibit “A” as the 
“subject property,” is approved for conditional use permit. 

 
 
 

Approved this      th day of      , 2022. 
 
                         Attest:                                         

Meredith Roark, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
Existing Zoning Map 

 

   
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 



O-22-Z-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING  

THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN 
 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission adopted an official Zoning Map for 
the City of Decatur on February 4, 1988; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission has considered the proposed  
application and other information submitted by the applicant, as well as comments by the 
applicant and members of the public at public hearings; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission finds that the facts submitted with the  
application and presented at the public hearings establish that the proposed amendment to the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan meets the standards established in Section 11.2.2 of the Decatur 
Unified Development Ordinance; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission desires to amend the Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan. 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commissioners of the City  
of Decatur, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by authority of the same, as follows: 
 
 The land use designation for the property located at 465 Clairemont Avenue, such 
property also identified on the attached exhibit “A” as the “subject property,” is changed from 
RL – Low Density Residential to I – Institutional. 

 
  
Approved this              th day of             , 2022. 
 
                         Attest:                                        
             Meredith Roark, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
Existing Land Use Map 

 

 
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
 



O-22-Z-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING  

THE ZONING MAP 
 

 WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission adopted an official Zoning Map for 
the City of Decatur on February 4, 1988; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission has considered the proposed  
application and other information submitted by the applicant, as well as comments by the 
applicant and members of the public at public hearings; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission finds that the facts submitted with the  
application and presented at the public hearings establish that the proposed amendment to the 
Zoning Map meets the standards established in Sections 11.2.2 of the Decatur Unified 
Development Ordinance; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission wishes to amend the Zoning Map; and 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commissioners of the City  
of Decatur, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by authority of the same, as follows: 
 
 The property located at 465 Clairemont Avenue, such property also identified on the 
attached Exhibit “A” as the “subject property,” is rezoned from R-60 –Single Family Residential 
to I– Institutional. 

 
Approved this            th day of             , 2022. 
 
                         Attest:                                        
             Meredith Roark, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
Existing Zoning Map 

 

   
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
 







Revised April 2015

Submittal checklist

Site plan.  Please attach a plan of the proposed development with the following information.  Provide to-scale size 
copy as well as one copy in an 8.5 x 11” format. Also, please provide an electronic file of the entire application.

1. All property lines with dimensions.

2. Location of buildings or other structures, drainage courses, and easements.

3. Proposed street right-of-way lines.

4. Comprehensive site development plan if application is for commercial, industrial, high density single-family 
residential, multiple-family residential or institutional use.

5. North arrow, scale, land lot, block and lot numbers.

Survey.  Please attach a survey of the property.  Provide one to-scale copy as well as one copy in an 8.5 x 11” format.

Floor plans and building elevations.  Provide proposed floor plans and elevations of proposed building 
improvements.  

Project summary.  Please provide a summary description of the proposed project, including number, height, floor 
area and proposed use of each building.

Planned Unit Development (PUD). Please refer to Section 5.4.5. of the Unified Development Ordinance for additional 
submittal requirements.





  
 

 

    
   

STATEMENT OF INTENT    
    

As Required by    
City of Decatur, Georgia Zoning Ordinance    

    
For    

    
Rezoning Application, Land Use 

Amendment, and Special Exception 
Application pursuant to the City of Decatur 

Zoning Ordinance    
   

by    
    

Parkland Communities, Inc.  c/o Battle Law, P.C.  
    
    

For    
1.675 acres of land located at 614, 618, and 
622 East Lake Drive, being Tax Parcel Nos. 
15 213 04 164, 15 213 04 158, and 15 213 

04 159 
 
    
    

Submitted for Applicant by:    
    

        
   

Michèle L. Battle 
Battle Law, P.C. 

3562 Habersham at Northlake 
Building J, Suite 100 
Tucker, GA 30084 

404) 601-7616 Phone 
(404) 745-0045 Facsimile 

                                       mlb@battlelawpc.com 
 
   



  
 

 

   
   

I. STATEMENT OF INTENT    

The Applicant, Parkland Communities, Inc., is seeking to rezone and amend the land use 

of 1.675 acres of land located at the corner East Lake Drive and Feld Avenue, being tax parcel 

nos. 15 213 04 164, 15 213 04 158, and 15 213 04 159 (“The Subject Property”). The Applicant 

is seeking the RM-43 zoning designation to allow for the development of 34 stacked flat homes. 

The Subject Property is currently zoned R-60 with a future land use designation of Low Density 

Residential. The Applicant is also seeking a land use amendment to Medium Density Residential 

to allow for the proposed stacked flat product. The proposed 34 homes will increase housing 

options in the area and be especially attractive to young families. The Subject Property is 

particularly striking due to its proximity to Oakhurst Park. Harmony Park, and Oakhurst 

Elementary School. The proposed rezoning and associated development are appropriate for the 

area and would be a positive asset to the greater community.  

 

Number of Units 34 

Building Height 43’7” to top of ridge; 36’ mean roof height 

Floor Area 2 bedroom units, 17 units, 1,636 sf/unit 

3 bedroom units, 17 units, 1,956 sf/unit 

Total: 61,064sf 

Proposed Use of Each Building  All proposed buildings are residential, stacked 

flats 

  

This document is submitted as a Letter of Intent, Impact Analysis and notice of   

Applicant’s preservation of their constitutional rights. A surveyed plat and site plan of the 

Subject Property has been filed contemporaneously with the Application, along with other 

required materials.   

 

   
 



  
 

 

II. Impact Analysis   

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
 
1. How would the uses permitted under the proposed land use category be suitable in view of the 
use and development of adjacent and nearby property?  
 
 The uses permitted under the proposed RM (medium density residential) land use 
category is suitable in view of the use and development of adjacent and nearby property. The 
parcel immediately North of the Subject Property has a RM land use designation. The property to 
the immediate East has a land use category of C, being commercial and high-density residential. 
Additionally, a number of other parcels with RM and C land use designations exist in close 
proximity to the Subject Property. 
 
2. What adverse affects does the proposed amendment have on the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property? 
 
To the Applicant’s knowledge, the proposed amendment will not have any adverse effects on the 
existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby properties. It will increase housing options in a 
desirable area where that is encouraged. 
  
 3. To what extent will the proposed amendment result in uses which will or could cause an 
excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities or schools?  
 
To the Applicant’s knowledge, the proposed amendment will not result in uses which will or 
could cause an excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, 
or schools. 
 
4. Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the 
property which, because of their impact on the public health, safety, morality and general welfare 
of the community, give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the proposed 
amendment? 
 
To the Applicant’s knowledge, there are no other existing or changing conditions affecting the 
use and development of the Subject Property, because of their impact on the public health, 
safety, morality, and general welfare of the community. 
 
LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
1. How would the uses permitted under the proposed land use category be suitable in view of 

the use and development of adjacent and nearby property? 
 



The uses permitted under the proposed land use category of RM (medium density residential) 
are suitable in view of the use and development of adjacent and nearby property. Land uses 
surrounding the Subject Property include RL, RM, and C. 

2. What adverse affects does the proposed amendment have on the existing use or usability of
adjacent or nearby property?

The proposed amendment from RL to RM does not have any adverse effects on the existing
use or usability of adjacent or nearby property.

3. To what extent will the proposed amendment result in uses which will or could cause an
excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities or schools?

To the Applicant’s knowledge, the proposed amendment will not result in uses which will or
could cause an excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities,
utilities, or schools.

4. Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the
property which, because of their impact on the public health, safety, morality and general
welfare of the community, give supporting grounds of either approval or disapproval of the
proposed amendment?

To the Applicant’s knowledge, there are no other existing or changing conditions affecting
the use and development of the property which, because of their impact on the public health,
safety, morality, and general welfare of the community, give supporting grounds of either
approval or disapproval of the proposed amendment.

SPECIAL EXCEPTION 

1. What is the special exception requested? What code requirement do you wish to vary from?

The Applicant is seeking exception from code section 9.1.2.e.

2. Explain how the proposed special exception will be suitable in view of the use and
development of adjacent and nearby properties?
The proposed development is inclusive of affordable housing units at 80% of the area
median income (AMI).

3. What impact will the proposed exception have on public safety, traffic on public streets,
transportation facilities, utilities, and other public services?
The proposed exception will not have an impact on public safety, traffic on public streets,
transportation facilities, utilities, and other public services.



  
 

 

4. What impact will the proposed exception have on established property values and on the 
health, safety, comfort, and general welfare of the residents of the City? 

   
The proposed exception will not have an impact on established property values and on the 
health, safety, comfort, and general welfare of the residents of the City. 
 

III. NOTICE OF PRESERVATION OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS   

   
The portions of the City Decatur Zoning Ordinance, facially and as applied to the Subject 
Property, which restrict or classify or may restrict or classify the Subject Property so as to 
prohibit its development as proposed by the Applicant are or would be unconstitutional in that 
they would destroy the Applicant’s property rights without first paying fair, adequate and just 
compensation for such rights, in violation of Article I, Section I, Paragraph I of the Constitution 
of the State of Georgia of 1983, Article I, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State 
of Georgia of 1983, and the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the 
Constitution of the United States.   
   
The application of the City of Decatur Zoning Ordinance to the Subject Property which restricts 
its use to any classification other than that proposed by the Applicant is unconstitutional, illegal, 
null and void, constituting a taking of Applicant’s Property in violation of the Just Compensation 
Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, Article I,   
Section I, Paragraph I, and Article I, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of  
Georgia of 1983, and the Equal Protection and Due Process Clauses of the Fourteenth 
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States denying the Applicant an economically 
viable use of its land while not substantially advancing legitimate state interests.   
A denial of this Application would constitute an arbitrary and capricious act by the City of 
Decatur City Council without any rational basis therefore, constituting an abuse of discretion in 
violation of Article I, Section I, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 1983, 
Article I, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 1983, the Due 
Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.   
   
A refusal by the City of Decatur City Council to rezone the Subject Property to the classification 
as requested or issue the special land use permit requested by the Applicant would be 
unconstitutional and discriminate in an arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable manner between 
the Applicant and owners of similarly situated property in violation of Article I, Section I, 
Paragraph II of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 1983 and the Equal Protection Clause 
of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States. Any rezoning of the 
Property or granting of a special land use permit subject to conditions which are different from 
the conditions requested by the Applicant, to the extent such different conditions would have the 
effect of further restricting Applicant’s utilization of the property, would also constitute an 
arbitrary, capricious and discriminatory act in zoning the Subject Property to an   



  
 

 

unconstitutional classification and would likewise violate each of the provisions of the State and 
Federal Constitutions set forth hereinabove.   
   
A refusal to allow the rezoning in questions would be unjustified from a fact-based standpoint 
and instead would result only from constituent opposition, which would be an unlawful 
delegation of authority in violation of Article IX, Section II, Paragraph IV of the Georgia 
Constitution.   
   
A refusal to allow the rezoning in question would be invalid inasmuch as it would be denied 
pursuant to an ordinance which is not in compliance with the Zoning Procedures Law, O.C.G.A 
Section 36-66/1 et seq., due to the manner in which the Ordinance as a whole and its map(s) 
have been adopted.   
   
The existing zoning classification on the Subject Property is unconstitutional as it applies to the 
Subject Property. This notice is being given to comply with the provisions of O.C.G.A. Section  
36-11-1 to afford the City an opportunity to revise the Property to a constitutional classification. 
If action is not taken by the City to rectify this unconstitutional zoning classification within a 
reasonable time, the Applicant is hereby placing the City on notice that it may elect to file a 
claim in the Superior Court of DeKalb County demanding just and adequate compensation under 
Georgia law for the taking of the Subject Property, diminution of value of the Subject Property, 
attorney’s fees and other damages arising out of the unlawful deprivation of the Applicant’s 
property rights.   
  

IV. CONCLUSION  

For the foregoing reasons, the Applicant respectfully requests that the applications at 
issue be approved. The Applicant also invites and welcomes any comments from Staff or other 
officials of the City of Decatur so that such recommendations or input might be incorporated as 
conditions of approval of this Application.   
  
 This 27h day of February 2022.  
  
  
  
                  Respectfully Submitted,  
  
  

 
                  Michele L. Battle, Esq.  
                  Attorney for Applicant  

______________________  





“Exhibit A”  

Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Battle Law, P.C. 

Rezoning Application 

LIST OF OWNERS AND PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Owner:    Robert S Wayne 
Owner Mailing Address:  623 East Lake Drive, Decatur, Georgia 30030 
Property Address:   614 East Lake Drive, Decatur, Georgia 30030 
Parcel:    15 213 04 164  
Zoned:    R-60 
  
 
Owner:  Bruce Robert Cohen, as Trustee of the Sheldon B. Cohen 

Revocable Trust (per PSA) 
Owner Mailing Address:   PO Box 2586, Decatur, Georgia 30031 
Property Address:    618 East Lake Drive, Decatur, Georgia 30030  
Parcel:     15 213 04 158 
Zoned:     R-60 
 
 
Owner:     Larry Bowens  
Owner Mailing Address:   3100 Weslock Circle, Decatur, Georgia 30034  
Property Address:   622 East Lake Drive, Decatur, Georgia 30030 
Parcel:     15 213 04 159 
Zoned:     R-60 
 
 
 









1

HOG WIRE FENCE

W

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

W

O

H

E

O

H

E

A
/
C

~PARKSIDE AT FELD

AVENUE~

PID#15-213-04-204

PB 137/PG 104

ZONED RS-17

ABS FAMILY INVESTMENTS LLLP

PID# 15-213-04-163

DB 17046/PG 489

ZONED C-1

DAVIS JOHNNY

PID#15-213-04-165

DB 3442/PG 324

ZONED R-60

RECTOR

KIMBERLY D

PID# 15-213-04-157

DB 23034/PG 319

ZONED R-60

A
/
C

A
/
C

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X X X

XXXXXX

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X XXXXXXXXX

W

OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
HE

O
HE

W

OHE
OHE

A
/C

A
/C

A
/C

XXXXXXXX

X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

1
 S

TO
R
Y 

FR
A
M

E

2
 S

TO
R
Y 

FR
A
M

E1
 S

TO
R
Y 

FR
A
M

E

PORCH

W
D

 R
A
M

P

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G
G

G
G

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

2
7
.
0

B
.
C

.
-
B

.
C

.

FOUND

1/2" REBAR

FOUND

3/4" BENT OTF
FOUND

1/2" REBAR

FOUND

1/2" REBAR

FOUND

1/2" REBAR

FOUND CAPPED REBAR

FOUND

1/2" REBAR

(1.01' INSIDE R/W)

DOG WASTE BIN

POB TRACT 3 &

OVERALL TRACT

POC TRACT 1 & 2

IPS

POB TRACT 2

FOUND 1/2" REBAR

POB TRACT 1

FOUND 1/2" REBAR

IPS

FENCE 1.2'

INSIDE P/L

FENCE 1.4'

INSIDE P/L

WALL 0.9'

OUTSIDE P/L

WALL ON P/L

WALL 0.8'

OUTSIDE P/L

FENCE 1.5'

OUTSIDE P/L

FOUND

1/2" REBAR

ON LINE

2.7' FROM

CORNER

HOG WIRE FENCE

C
H

A
IN

 L
IN

K

F
E

N
C

E

E
A

S
T

 
L

A
K

E
 
D

R
.

(
6
0
'
 
R

I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

)

FELD AVENUE

(NOT OPEN)

N 0°14'29" W  390.04'

N 0°15'50" W  390.01'

P
R

I
V

A
T

E
 
A

L
L

E
Y

 
A

2
7

'
 
B

.
C

.
 
-
 
B

.
C

.

20.0

B.C.-B.C.

20.0

B.C.-B.C.

P
R

I
V

A
T

E
 
A

L
L

E
Y

 
A

1

0

3

0

1

0

3

0

1

0

3

0

6
2
.
0
0
'

N
 
8
9
°
5
8
'
0
6
"
 
E

6
2
.
0
1
'

N
 
8
9
°
4
3
'
2
1
"
 
E

6
3
.
0
0
'

S
 
8
9
°
4
8
'
3
7
"
 
E

N 0°15'29" W  389.58'

S
 
8
9
°
4
7
'
2
5
"
 
W

6
2
.
9
6
'

S
 
8
9
°
5
9
'
4
8
"
 
W

6
2
.
0
0
'

S
 
8
9
°
4
2
'
0
8
"
 
W

6
2
.
1
6
'

N 0°14'29" W  390.01'

FENCE 1.6'

OUTSIDE P/L

PRIVATE ALLEY B 27' B.C. - B.C.

27.0

B.C.-B.C.

S

S

2
0

'
 
B

.
C

.
 
-
 
B

.
C

.

2 3 4 5 6 7

35.5

CRUSHED SLATE WALKWAY

5
'
 
B

L

13/1415/16

17/18

19/20

21/22

23/2425/26

27/28

1/2

29/30

5' BL

3/4

5/6

7/8

9/10

11/1231/32

33/34
PARK

PROPOSED

GREENWAY

5' BL

TO

FAIRPARK

LANE

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
D

E
T

E
N

T
I
O

N

MAIL

KIOSK

3
2

'
 
B

L

PARK

3
2

'
 
B

L

20' SEWER

EASEMENT

2
0

'
 
 
B

U
F

F
E

R
,
 
M

I
X

 
O

F
 
T

R
E

E

S
A

V
E

 
A

N
D

 
R

E
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G

2
7
.
0

B
.
C

.
-
B

.
C

.

PROPOSED 8' SIDEWALK

EXISTING

SIDEWALK TO BE

REMOVED

F
i
l
e
 
L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
:

d
:
\
d
r
o
p
b
o
x
 
(
a
e
p
)
\
0
1
-
c
i
v
i
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
0
3
-
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
p
a
r
k
l
a
n
d
\
2
1
2
7
3
 
-
 
o
a
k
h
u
r
s
t
\
0
2
-
d
e
s
i
g
n
\
d
w

g
\
0
1
-
c
o
n
c
e
p
t
\
2
1
2
7
3
 
-
 
o
a
k
h
u
r
s
t
 
z
o
n
i
n
g

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
:
 
W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
,
 
F

e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
2
,
 
2
0
2
2
 
9
:
3
5
:
2
3
 
A

M

A B Q

1

2

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

D E F G H I J K L M N O P

3

4

C

29
9 

So
u

th
 M

a
in

 S
t.

, S
u

ite
 A

 |
 A

lp
h

a
re

tt
a

, G
A

 3
00

09
77

0.
22

5.
47

30
 |

 w
w

w
.a

e
p

a
tl.

c
o

m

CIV
IL 

EN
GI

NE
ER

ING
 ̈ LA

ND
 PL

AN
NIN

G ̈ 
 LA

ND
SC

AP
E A

RC
HIT

EC
TU

RE
   ̈LA

ND
 SU

RV
EY

ING

Designed by

Checked by

Project #

S
i
t
e
 
Z

o
n
i
n
g
 
P

l
a
n
 
f
o
r

6
2
2
 
E

a
s
t
 
L
a
k
e
 
D

r
i
v
e

6
1
4
,
 
6
1
8
 
&

 
6
2
2
 
E

A
S

T
 
L
A

K
E

 
D

R
I
V

E

D
E

C
A

T
U

R
,
 
G

A
,
 
3
0
0
3
0

L
.
L
.
 
2
1
3
 
~

 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T
 
1
5
T

H

P
A

R
C

E
L
 
#
 
1
5
-
2
1
3
-
0
4
-
1
5
8
,
 
1
5
-
2
1
3
-
0
4
-
1
5
9

&
 
1
5
-
2
1
3
-
0
4
-
1
6
4

Copyright 2022, Alliance

Engineering & Planning, Inc.

This drawing is the sole property of Alliance

Engineering & Planning. It is to be used for the

specific project and location identified herein

only. No part of this drawing may be

reproduced, stored in any retrieval system, or

transmitted in any form or by any means, either

electronic, mechanical, printed, photocopied, or

in any way without the written permission of

Alliance Engineering & Planning.

Orig. Issue

SURVEYING BY:

ALLIANCE LAND SURVEYING

PHONE: (678) 828-9424

CONTACT: MICHAEL BELL

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
.

2
9

9
 
S

 
M

A
I
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
A

L
P

H
A

R
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A

2
4

 
H

R
 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

:
 
J
I
M

 
J
A

C
O

B
I
,
 
4

0
4

.
4

5
6

.
5

5
6

2

J
I
M

@
P

A
R

K
L

A
N

D
C

O
.
C

O
M

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R

NOT

RELEASED

FOR

 CONSTRUCTION

01.28.22

GB

BW

21273

0 20

SCALE: 1"= 20'

NORTH

02.02.22

ZONING

PLAN

SITE VICINITY MAP

NORTH

GROSS ACRES: +/- 1.675 AC

EXISTING ZONING: R-60

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

BUILDING SETBACKS:

TOTAL UNITS:

PROPOSED ZONING: RM-43

GROSS DENSITY:

FRONT:

SIDE:

+/- 20.3 U/A

REAR:

34 UNITS

5'

32'

5'

35' (3 STORIES)

PARKING ANALYSIS

REAR ENTRY

LOT TYPE

1

GARAGE DRIVEWAY

1 2

UNIT

34

TOTAL PER 

UNITS

TOTAL 

SPACES

TOTAL

68

ON-STREET PARKING
7

75TOTAL PARKING PROPOSED 

MIN. OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIRED
34

NET ACRES: +/- 1.675 AC

NET DENSITY:
+/- 20.3 U/A

SEWER NOTE:

SANITARY LINE TO CONNECT WITH EXISTING

SEWER LINE LOCATED IN ADJACENT

PROPERTY. SEWER PROVIDED BY DEKALB.

PROPERTY OWNERS:

PID 15-213-04-158: COHEN DOROTHY D

PID 15-213-04-159: BOWENS LARRY

PID 15-213-04-164: WAYNE ROBERT S

WATER NOTE:

WATER PROVIDED BY DEKALB; AVAILABLE

WITHIN EAST LAKE DRIVE R/W.

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

614, 618 & 622 EAST LAKE DRIVE

DECATUR, GA, 30030

STORMWATER NOTE:

STORMWATER WILL BE PROVIDED ON SITE

AS UNDERGROUND DETENTION PER PLAN.

FEMA NOTE:

NO PORTION OF THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED

IN A FEMA FLOOD PLAIN AS PER FEMA MAP

NO. 13089C0068K DATED AUGUST 15, 2019

SITE DATA

3
R

D
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

MAXWELL STREET

L

E

Y

D

E

N

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

O

A

K

V

I

E

W

 

R

O

A

D

EAST LAKE DRIVE

OAKHURST

PARK

LOT COVERAGE: 70% 

EXISTING USES: (LOW DENSITY RES.) S.F. DETACHED DWELLING

PROPOSED USES: (MEDIUM DENSITY RES.) MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING

HARMONY

PARK

C

A

M

B

R

I

D

G

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

F

E

L

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

M

E

A

D

 

R

O

A

D

F

A

I
R

P

A

R

K

L

A

N

E

SITE

W HILL STREET

W BENSON ST

BUFFERS:

AS SHOWN ON PLAN

(OFF-STREET)

0 500

SCALE: 1"=500'

2.) VARIANCE FRONT SETBACK FROM 30' TO 5'

VARIANCES:

3.) VARIANCE LOT COVERAGE FROM 60% TO 70%

4.) VARIANCE TO ALLOW LESS THAN A MINIMUM

OF 7 UNITS PER BUILDING

1.) VARIANCE SIDE SETBACK FROM 12' TO 5'

5.) PER 9.1.2.E OF THE TREE PROTECTION

ORDINANCE, SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS APPLY TO

CANOPY STANDARDS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING REQ'D 10% 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROVIDED 17% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM



X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
XXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

W

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

OHEOHEOHEOHEOHEOHEOHE

OHE

W

FOUND
1/2" REBAR

O
H
E

A/C

FOUND
1/2" REBAR

FOUND
1/2" REBAR

FOUND
1/2" REBAR

FOUND
CAPPED REBAR

~PARKSIDE AT FELD AVENUE~
PB 137/PG 104

ABS FAMILY INVESTMENTS LLLP
PID# 15-213-04-163
DB 17046/PG 489

DAVIS JOHNNY
PID#15-213-04-165

DB 3442/PG 324

CITY OF DECATUR
PID# 15-213-04-177

RECTOR KIMBERLY D
PID# 15-213-04-157
DB 23034/PG 319

A/C
A/C

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

XX

FOUND
1/2" REBAR

(1.01' INSIDE R/W)

DOG WASTE BIN

POB TRACT 2
FOUND 1/2" REBAR

POB TRACT 1
FOUND 1/2" REBAR

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

IPS

R
ETA

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

R
ETA

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

FENCE 1.2'
INSIDE P/L

FENCE 1.4'
INSIDE P/L

WALL 0.9'
OUTSIDE P/L

WALL ON P/L

WALL 0.8'
OUTSIDE P/L

FENCE 1.6'
OUTSIDE P/L

FENCE 1.5'
OUTSIDE P/L

1 STORY 
FRAME

2 STORY 
FRAME

1 STORY 
FRAME

PO
R
C
H

WD RAMP

G G G G G G G

G
G

G
G

G
G

W W W W W W W

W

W

W

W

W

T T T T T T

H
O

G
 W

IR
E FEN

C
E

H
O

G
 W

IR
E FEN

C
E

CHAIN LINK FENCE

SS
SS

SSMH
TOP: 1033.99
IN: 1026.04

OUT: 1025.94

SSMH
TOP: 1032.95
IN: 1025.70

OUT: 1025.70

SSMH
TOP: 1031.75
IN: 1025.45

OUT: 1025.30

SS

SS

SS

FO

20' S.S.E.

FOUND
3/4" BENT OTF

JB
TOP: 1025.33
IN: 1021.33
IN: 1021.33

OUT: 1016.23

SWCB
TOP: 1025.73
OUT: 1022.18

SWCB
TOP: 1025.46
OUT: 1021.71

18" RCP

1
5
" RC

P
1
5
" RC

P

2
0
' S.S.E.

FOUND
1/2" REBAR ON LINE
2.7' FROM CORNER

POB TRACT 3
POC TRACT 1 & 2

IPS

L.
S
.F

. 
1

3
2

2
6

0
9

5
 A

TL
A
N
TA

 H
W

Y.
 S

TE
. 

1
0

0
FL

O
W

ER
Y 

B
R
A
N
C

H
, 

G
A
. 

3
0

5
4

2
6

7
8

.8
2

8
.9

4
2

4
∫

 W
W

W
.A

EP
A
TL

.C
O

M

LO
C

A
TE

D
 IN

:

  
 L

A
N
D

 L
O

T 
2

1
3

  
1

5
th

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
D

EK
A
LB

 C
O

U
N
TY

, 
G

EO
R
G

IA

A
LT

A
 / 

N
S
PS

 L
A
N
D

 T
IT

LE
 S

U
R
V
EY

FO
R

PA
R
KL

A
N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N
IT

IE
S
, 

IN
C

.,
 A

 G
EO

R
G

IA
C

O
R
PO

R
A
TI

O
N
 &

 F
IR

S
T 

A
M

ER
IC

A
N
 T

IT
LE

IN
S
U
R
A
N
C

E 
C

O
M

PA
N
Y

IS
S
U
E:

R
EV

. 
1
:

R
EV

. 
2
:

R
EV

. 
3
:

R
EV

. 
4
:

R
EV

. 
5
:

R
EV

. 
6
:

R
EV

. 
7
:

D
A
TE

D
ES

C
R
IP

TI
O

N
IN

IT
IA

L:

DRAFTED BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT #:

DLA

DLA

21273

Know what's below.
      Call before you dig.

THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE  SHOWN IN
AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY AND HAVE
NOT BEEN  INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY
THE OWNER OR ITS  REPRESENTATIVE.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE
EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING

UTILITIES BEFORE  COMMENCING WORK,
AND AGREES TO BE FULLY  RESPONSIBLE

FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH
MIGHT BE  OCCASIONED BY THE

CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO EXACTLY
LOCATE AND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL

UNDERGROUND  UTILITIES.

COPYRIGHT   2022 ALLIANCE SURVEYING
LLC NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE
WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT

OF ALLIANCE SURVEYING LLC

SHEET NO:

1 OF 1
30' 0' 30' 60'

1 INCH = 30 FEET

G
R
ID

 N
O

R
TH

G
EO

R
G

IA
 W

ES
T S

TA
TE PLA

N
E

N
A
D

 8
3
 (2

0
1
1
)

THIS BLOCK RESERVED FOR THE CLERK OF THE
SUPERIOR COURT.

Fi
le

 L
oc

at
io

n:
c:

\u
se

rs
\c

ha
yc

e 
be

ll\
dr

op
bo

x 
(a

ep
)\0

4
-s

ur
ve

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
\0

3
-p

ro
je

ct
s\

2
1
2
7
3
 -

 o
ak

hu
rs

t 
tr

ac
ts

\d
w
g\

2
1
2
7
3
 -

 o
ak

hu
rs

t 
tr

ac
ts

SURVEY NOTES

1. All easements and rights of way of which the surveyor has knowledge are
shown hereon; others may exist of which the surveyor has no knowledge and
of which there is no observable evidence.

2. The property shown hereon is subject to all easements and restrictions of
record both written and unwritten.

3. According to the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for DeKalb County,
Georgia, (Community-panel number 13089C 0068K, dated August 15,
2019), all of the subject property lies within Zone X, defined as "areas
determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain."

4. The locations of underground utilities shown hereon are based on visible
structures and maps and a KMZ file provided by Subsurface Utility
Investigations Inc. and are approximate only.  The property shown hereon
may be served by underground utilities which are not shown hereon.
Alliance makes no warranties or claims that all utilities are marked or
accurate.  All Utility Companies should be contacted before beginning any
design or construction. SUI's report can be provided upon request.

5. North arrow and bearings shown hereon are based on GA West Zone -
NAD83 adjusted 2011. Using Global Positional System (GPS) and obtained
by RTK observations on 10-19-2021 using the Leica Smartnet System. All
distances are horizontal ground measurements expressed in U.S. Survey
Feet.

6. The field data upon which this plat is based has a closure precision of one
foot in 11,355 feet and an angular error on 09 seconds per angle point
and was adjusted using the compass rule method.

7. This plat has been calculated for closure and is found to be accurate within
one foot in 638,084 feet.

8. Equipment used for measurement:
Angular: Leica TS16i Robotic Total Station
Linear: Leica TS16i Robotic Total Station
GPS: Leica GS GPS Reciever

9. This plat was prepared for the exclusive use of the person, persons, or
entity named hereon. This plat does not extend to any unnamed person,
persons, or entity without express written certification by the surveyor
naming said person, persons, or entity.

10. State, County, and Local buffers and setbacks might exist on the subject
property that are not shown hereon.

11. This survey is not valid without the Original  Signature and Seal of a Georgia
Licensed Surveyor.

12. There was no observable evidence of Human Burials or Cemeteries on
Subject Property at the time of the field Survey.

13. Alliance Surveying does not warrant the existence or nonexistence of any
wetlands or hazardous wastes located on the Subject Property.

14. At the time of the field survey there was no observable evidence of recent
earth moving work, building construction, building additions, changes in
right-of-way, or recent street and/or sidewalk repair.

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION
THIS PLAT IS A RETRACEMENT OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND
DOES NOT SUBDIVIDE OR CREATE A NEW PARCEL OR MAKE ANY CHANGES TO ANY
REAL PROPERTY BOUNDARIES. THE RECORDING INFORMATION OF THE DOCUMENTS,
MAPS, PLATS, OR OTHER INSTRUMENTS WHICH CREATED THE PARCEL OR PARCELS
ARE STATED HEREON. RECORDATION OF THIS PLAT DOES NOT IMPLY APPROVAL OF
ANY LOCAL JURISDICTION, AVAILABILITY OF PERMITS, COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL
REGULATIONS OR REQUIREMENTS, OR SUITABILITY FOR ANY USE OR PURPOSE OF
THE LAND. FURTHERMORE, THE UNDERSIGNED LAND SURVEYOR CERTIFIES THAT
THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE MINIMUM TECHNICAL STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY
SURVEYS IN GEORGIA AS SET FORTH IN THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
GEORGIA BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND
SURVEYORS AND AS SET FORTH IN O.C.G.A. SECTION 15-6-67.

Date

01/07/2021

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION
TO: Parkland Communities, Inc., a Georgia Corporation & First American Title Insurance
Company

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS
BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL
REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND
ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 11(b), 13, 16,
17 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED DURING THE
MONTH OF DECEMBER OF 2021.

MICHAEL C. BELL, GA P.L.S. #3465 Date

01/07/2021

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

ZONING
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS ZONED R-60 PER CITY OF DECATUR
ZONING MAP ACCESSED OCTOBER 6, 2021.

THE SETBACKS FOR ZONE R-60 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
PER CITY OF DECATUR MUNICODE ACCESSED ON 10/06/2021
ARE AS FOLLOWS:

FRONT: 30' FEET
SIDE: 10' FEET
REAR: 30' FEET
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 35' FEET

ANY SETBACKS AND BUFFERS SHOWN ARE GOVERNED BY THE
LOCAL JURISDICTION AND SHOULD BE CONFIRMED IN WRITING
PRIOR TO LAND PLANNING OR ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE

LEYDEN STREET

EAST LAKE DRIVE

M
EAD

 RO
AD

O
AK

V
IE

W
 R

O
AD

3
R
D

 A
V
EN

U
E

SITE

TITLE COMMITMENT

SURVEYORS COMMENTS ON B-II TITLE EXCEPTIONS AS SHOWN IN THAT COMMITMENT
FOR TITLE INSURANCE ISSUED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, SAID
COMMITMENT HAVING A FILE NUMBER OF 21-0412 AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF
12/08/2021.

1. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, first
appearing in the public records or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof
but prior to the date the proposed Insured acquires for value of record the estate or
interest or mortgage thereon covered by this Commitment.

2. Any owner's policy issued pursuant hereto will contain under Schedule B the standard
exceptions set forth on the inside cover.  Any loan policy will also contain under
Schedule B thereof, the standard exceptions set forth on the inside cover of this
commitment relating to the owner's policy.

3. Standard Exceptions 2 and 3 may be removed from the policy when a satisfactory
survey and inspection of the premises is made.

4. Taxes and assessments for the year 2022 and subsequent years, which are not yet
due and payable.

5. Any additional taxes, interest and/or penalties which may be assessed for prior tax
years by virtue of adjustment, re-appraisal, re-assessment, appeal or other amendment
to the tax records of the county in which the subject property is located.

6. Rights of upper and lower riparian owners in and to the waters of creek crossing or
adjoining the property, and the natural flow thereof, free from diminution or pollution.

7. No insurance is afforded as to the exact amount of acreage contained in the property
described herein.

8. All matters as shown on that certain ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey for Parkland
Communities, Inc. and First American Title Insurance Company prepared by
________________, _______________, Georgia RLS #____, dated __________.

As to Tract 1 only:

9. Findings of Fact and Order on Complaint In Rem for Abatement of Nuisance. City of
Decatur, Georgia vs. 622 E. Lake Drive, dated April 27, 2010, filed April 30, 2010,
recorded in Deed Book 21949, page 237, DeKalb County records.  LEGAL
DESCRIPTION IS BLANKET AND INCLUDES PARCEL 1

TITLE LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS

TRACT 1

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 213 of the 15th District of
DeKalb County, Georgia, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the north side of E. Lake Drive, 915 feet east from the northeast
intersection of E. Lake Drive and Third Avenue; running thence along the north side of E.
Lake Drive 63 feet, more or less to a point; running thence north 190 feet to a point;
continuing north 200 feet, more or less, to a point; running thence west 63 feet, more or
less, to a point; running thence south 200 feet, more or less, to a point; continuing south
190 feet to the north side of E. Lake Drive and the POINT OF BEGINNING: being improved
property known as 622 E. Lake Drive, DeKalb County, Georgia.

TRACT 2

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 213 of the 15th District of
DeKalb County, Georgia, and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at an iron pin on the North Side of East Lake Drive, a distance of 853.0 feet East
as measured along the North Side of East Lake Drive from Third Avenue (having a 60 foot
right-of-way); running thence East along the North Side of East Lake Drive, a distance of
62.0 feet to an iron pin; thence North, a distance of 390 feet to an iron pin; thence West,
a distance of 62.0 feet to an iron pin; thence South, a distance of 390 feet to an iron pin
and the point of beginning, being improved property known as 618 East Lake Drive,
Decatur, Georgia 30030 according to the system of numbering houses in DeKalb County,
Georgia and being the same property conveyed to Gwendolyn D. Rich by virtue of a
Quitclaim Deed dated on October 18, 1985 and recorded in Deed Book 6836, Page
310; DeKalb County, Records.

Parcel: 15 213 04 158

Address: 618 E. Lake Drive

TRACT 3

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 213 of the 15th District of Cobb
County, Georgia, as shown on Plat of Survey by McClung Surveying, Inc. prepared for
Robert S. Wayne, dated January 16, 1997, and being more particularly described as
follows:

BEGINNING at an iron pin on the north side of East Lake Drive (60 foot right-of-way) 791
feet east as measured along the north side of East Lake Drive, from the northeast corner of
the intersection of East Lake Drive and Third Avenue, said iron pin also being at the
northeast corner of the intersection of East Lake Drive and Field Avenue (not open); running
thence east along the north side of East Lake Drive 62 feet to an iron pin; running thence
north 00 degrees 02 minutes 10 seconds West along the line dividing Lots 1 and 2, said
Block and Subdivision hereinafter described, 390 feet to an iron pin; running thence west
89 degrees 45 minutes 19 seconds west 62 feet to a fence post on the east side of Feld
Avenue (not open); running thence south 00 degrees 02 minutes 10 seconds east 390
feet to an iron pin on the north side of East Lake Drive and the point of beginning according
o survey for Kathy A. Coker and Louis J Passarelta, Jr., prepared by Eston Pendley,
Registered Land Survey, dated May 23, 1979, and being known as Lot 1, Block E., Mrs.
Mary Myrtis Glenn Subdivision, and being known as 614 East Lake Drive, Decatur, Georgia.

SURVEYED LEGAL TRACT 1

A parcel of land lying in land lot 213 of the 15th district, Dekalb County, Georgia and being
more particularly as described.

Commence at a set 1/2” rebar at the intersection between the northerly right of way of
East Lake Drive (60' right of way) and the easterly right of way of Feld Avenue (Not open);
thence leaving said easterly right of way of Feld Avenue, run North 89 degrees 59 minutes
48 seconds East along said northerly right of way of East Lake Drive for a distance of
62.00 feet to a found 1/2 rebar; thence run North 89 degrees 42 minutes 08 seconds
East for a distance of 62.16 feet to found 1/2” rebar being the POINT OF BEGINNING of
the parcel herein described; thence leaving said northerly right of way of East Lake Drive run
North 00 degrees 15 minutes 50 seconds West for a distance of 390.01 feet to a found
1/2” rebar; thence run South 89 degrees 48 minutes 37 seconds East for a distance of
63.00 feet to a point; thence run South 00 degrees 15 minutes 29 seconds East for a
distance of 389.58 feet to a found capped rebar; thence run South 89 degrees 47
minutes 25 seconds West for a distance of 62.96 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said parcel being 24,549 square feet, or 0.564 acres.

MICHAEL C. BELL, GA P.L.S. #3465

SURVEYED LEGAL TRACT 2

A parcel of land lying in land lot 213 of the 15th district, Dekalb County, Georgia and being
more particularly as described.

Commence at a set 1/2” rebar at the intersection between the northerly right of way of
East Lake Drive (60' right of way) and the easterly right of way of Feld Avenue (Not open);
thence leaving said easterly right of way of Feld Avenue, run North 89 degrees 59 minutes
48 seconds East along said northerly right of way of East Lake Drive for a distance of
62.00 feet to a found 1/2” rebar being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel herein
described; thence leaving said northerly right of way of East Lake Drive run North 00
degrees 14 minutes 29 seconds West for a distance of 390.04 feet to a found 1/2”
rebar; thence run North 89 degrees 43 minutes 21 seconds East for a distance of 62.01
feet to a found 1/2” rebar; thence run South 00 degrees 15 minutes 50 seconds East for
a distance of 390.01 feet to a found 1/2” rebar; thence run South 89 degrees 42 minutes
08 seconds West for a distance of 62.16 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said parcel being 24,214 square feet, or 0.556 acres.

SURVEYED LEGAL TRACT 3

A parcel of land lying in land lot 213 of the 15th district, Dekalb County, Georgia and being
more particularly as described.

Commence at a set 1/2” rebar at the intersection between the northerly right of way of
East Lake Drive (60' right of way) and the easterly right of way of Feld Avenue (Not open);
said 1/2” rebar being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel herein described; thence
leaving said northerly right of way of East Lake Drive, run North 00 degrees 14 minutes 29
seconds West along said easterly right of way of Feld Avenue for a distance of  390.01
feet to a point; thence leaving said easterly right of way of Feld Avenue run North 89
degrees 58 minutes 06 seconds East for a distance of 62.00 feet to a found 1/2” rebar;
thence run South 00 degrees 14 minutes 29 seconds East for a distance of 390.04 feet
to a found 1/2” rebar; thence run South 89 degrees 59 minutes 48 seconds West for a
distance of 62.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said parcel being 24,181 square feet, or 0.555 acres.

OVERALL SURVEYED LEGAL

A parcel of land lying in land lot 213 of the 15th district, Dekalb County, Georgia and being
more particularly as described.

Commence at a set 1/2” rebar at the intersection between the northerly right of way of
East Lake Drive (60' right of way) and the easterly right of way of Feld Avenue (Not open);
said 1/2” rebar being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel herein described; thence
leaving said northerly right of way of East Lake Drive, run North 00 degrees 14 minutes 29
seconds West along said easterly right of way of Feld Avenue for a distance of  390.01
feet to a point; thence leaving said Right of Way run North 89 degrees 58 minutes 06
seconds East for a distance of 62.00 feet to a found 1/2 inch rebar; thence run North 89
degrees 43 minutes 21 seconds East for a  distance of 62.01 feet to a found 1/2 inch
rear; thence run South 89 degrees 48 minutes 37 seconds East for a distance of 63.00
feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar; thence run South 00 degrees 15 minutes 29 seconds
East for a distance of 389.58 feet to a found capped rebar, said point lying on the
aforementioned Northerly Right of Way of East Lake Drive (60' Right of Way); thence run
South 89 degrees 47 minutes 25 seconds West along said Right of Way for a distance of
62.96 feet to a found 1/2 inch rebar; thence run South 89 degrees 42 minutes 08
seconds West along said Right of Way for a distance of 62.16 feet to a found 1/2 inch
rebar; thence run South 89 degrees 59 minutes 48 seconds West along said Right of Way
for a distance of 62.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  Said parcel contains 1.675
Acres or 72,945.95 Square Feet

0
1
/0

7
/2

0
2
2

0
2
/0

4
/2

0
2
2

A
D

D
 S

EW
ER

 A
N
D

 S
TO

R
M

 IN
V
ER

TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LAKE DR. (60' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 0°14'29" W  390.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
62.00' N 89°58'06" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
62.01' N 89°43'21" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 0°14'29" W  390.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 0°15'50" W  390.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 0°15'29" W  389.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 3 24,181 Sq. Feet 0.555 Acres 614 E. LAKE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2 24,214 Sq. Feet 0.556 Acres 618 E. LAKE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1 24,549 Sq. Feet 0.564 Acres 622 E. LAKE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FELD AVENUE (40' R/W)(NOT OPEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERALL TRACT 72,944 Sq. Feet 1.675 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°47'25" W 62.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°42'08" W 62.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°59'48" W 62.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.00' S 89°48'37" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 3465

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R





THE MAGNOLIA

© Parkland Communities, Inc.

3 Bed / 2.5 Bath
1,958 sqft

First

Second

Third



THE LAUREL
2 Bed / 2.5 Bath

1,636 sqft

First

Second

Third

© Parkland Communities, Inc.



kimley-horn.com 11720 Amber Park Drive, Suite 600, Alpharetta, GA 30009 770 619 4280

MEMORANDUM
To: Jim Jacobi, Parkland Communities, Inc.

From: John D. Walker, P.E., PTOE, Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
Olivia Zuvanich, E.I., Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Date: January 21, 2022

RE: Oakhurst Park, Decatur, Georgia – Trip Generation Memorandum

Kimley-Horn is pleased to provide this memorandum summarizing the trip generation for the proposed
Oakhurst Park development on an approximate 0.56-acre property located on the east side of Feld
Avenue and north of East Lake Drive in the City of Decatur, DeKalb County, Georgia.

PROJECT OVERVIEW
As currently envisioned, the development will consist of approximately 34 townhomes. This
memorandum provides density and trip generation for the proposed Oakhurst Park development.

TRIP GENERATION
Project traffic, for the purposes of this evaluation, is defined as the vehicle trips expected to be
generated by the proposed development. Anticipated trip generation for the Oakhurst Park

development was calculated using rates and equations contained in the Institute of Transportation
Engineers’ (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition, 2017.

The densities and the project trip generation for the proposed development are summarized by land
use in Table 1.

Table 1: Gross Trip Generation

Land Use ITE
Code Density

Daily Traffic AM Peak PM Peak
Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit

Multifamily Housing
(Low-Rise)

220 34 units 216 108 108 17 4 13 23 14 9

Total Gross Trips 216 108 108 17 4 13 23 14 9

Based on the trip generation shown in Table 1, the proposed Oakhurst Park development is projected
to generate approximately 216 daily trips (108 in, 108 out), 17 AM peak hour trips (4 in, 13 out), and 23
PM peak hour trips (14 in, 9 out).

Attachments:
l Trip Generation Analysis
l Concept Site Plan



Land Use Daily AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Trips Total In Out Total In Out

Proposed Site Traffic
220 Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise)  - General Urban/Suburban 34 d.u. 216 17 4 13 23 14 9

Gross Trips 216 17 4 13 23 14 9

k:\amt_marketing\parkland communities\oakhurst trip gen - decatur - january 2022\analysis\[oakhurst-tripgen.xls]trip generation

Trip Generation Analysis

Intensity

Oakhurst Park
Decatur, DeKalb County, Georgia



Oakhurst Park
Inclusionary Housing Plan

Parkland Communities, Inc.

February 21, 2022





Site location



614 622618

East Lake Drive



Site Location
• Project at the corner East Lake Drive and Feld Avenue

• Located at 614, 618, and 622 East Lake Dr

• 1.675 acres of land

• Close to Oakhurst Park, Harmony Park, and Oakhurst
Elementary School



Land Uses



Land Uses

•  Existing Land Use
o Low Density Residential

• Proposed Land Use
o Medium Density Residential



Existing Zoning Map 



Site Plan









Inclusionary 
Housing



Proposed Plan
• Professionally-managed rental community

• Thirty-four total units
-17 x 2-Bedroom units, 1,636 sqft
-17 x 3-Bedroom units, 1,958 sqft

• Inclusionary and Market-Rate dwelling units
-Six inclusionary dwelling units, 17.6%
-Twenty-eight market-rate units

• Six inclusionary dwelling units
-50:50 split
-Three 2-bedroom units
-Three 3-bedroom units

• Inclusionary dwelling units shall be interspersed among the 
market rate welling units throughout the development



Floor Plans & 
Areas





Development 
Phasing & 
Timing



Development 
Phasing & 
Timing



Project Timeline
• May 2023 – LDP issue / site work starts

• March 2024 – Site work complete, and Townhome
construction starts

• July 2024 – Start marketing and pre-leasing

• October 2024 – First residents move-in

• June 2025 – Construction complete, and all residents
moved-in



Phasing & Construction Schedule
• March 2024 – Construction starts

• July 2024 – Start marketing and pre-leasing

• October 2024 – First residents move-in / C.O. Units 1-14

• February 2025 – C.O. Units 19-30

• June 2025 – Construction complete, and all residents
moved-in / C.O. Units 15-18, 31-34



Marketing Plan
• To promote the rental of the inclusionary dwelling units

within the development

• Marketing and Pre-leasing will start three months prior to the
first move-in

• Owner will provide notice of availability of its intent to rent an
inclusionary dwelling unit to the Zoning Administrator

• An affidavit will be provided to the City’s Zoning
Administrator confirming that household eligibility
requirements have been met

• Subleasing of any leasing inclusionary dwelling unit will not
be permitted



*To be adjusted each year per HUD’s published limits*



Proposed Pricing
• The proposed pricing for each inclusionary dwelling unit

will be based on the 80% AMI when the units are
available for rent

• For example, if the units were available in 2021, the 2-
bedroom unit would be available for $1,553/mo and the 3-
bedroom unit would be available for $1,793/mo.



Deed Restriction

The Deed Restriction has not been drafted at this time, but will 
be provided to staff prior to the final hearing.  





 

 

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 

 
The Planning Commission will meet on March 8, 2022. The following staff report has been 
prepared for an application that was received by the Planning and Zoning Division of the 
Community and Economic Development Department.  
 
Applicant:   Parkland Communities, Inc. c/o Dani Blumenthal 
 
Property Address:    614, 618 and 622 East Lake Drive 
 
Parcel ID:      15 213 04 164; 15 213 04 158; and 15 213 04 159 
 
Present Land Use Category: RL – Low Density Residential 
 
Proposed Land Use Category: RM – Medium Density Residential 
 
Present Zoning District:  R-60 – Single Family Residential   
 
Proposed Zoning District:  RM-43 – Multiple Family Residential 
 
1. The subject properties are an approximate 1.6 acre parcel (69, 696 SF). The subject 

properties are currently zoned R-60 – Single Family Residential.  They are currently 
occupied by single family dwellings.   

2. The applicant is proposing a 34-unit stacked flat development. This development will 
include six (6) inclusionary dwelling units at 80% Area Median Income (AMI).  

3. In order to achieve the project and proposed uses, the applicant is seeking to amend the 
land use map from RL – Low Density Residential to RM – Medium Density Residential, 
as well as rezone the subject property from R-60 – Single Family Residential to RM-43 – 
Multiple Family Residential.  
 

4. As the City Commission recently passed the new tree ordinance (O-22-Z-01) that will 
take effect on March 21, 2022, the proposed development would not meet the new 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
614-622 E Lake Dr. 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 

                   

canopy coverage standards, therefore, the applicant is requesting a special exception to 
the requirements. 

5. The applicant is requesting a rezoning, a change in land use designation, and a special 
exception.  Each requires the approval of the City Commission with recommendation 
from the Planning Commission.   

6. Properties to the south and west are zoned R-60 – Single Family Residential. Abutting 
property to the north is zoned RS-17 – Single Family Residential. Abutting properties to 
the east are zoned C-1 – Local Commercial. 
 

7. Other requirements.  If approved, the project remains subject to current local life safety 
and fire codes, site development, local soil erosion, drainage, and tree preservation 
ordinances. 

 
 

Changing the land use designation of a property 

8. The following standards, per Section 11.2.2.F.2. of the UDO, shall be considered when an 
amendment to the comprehensive land use plan is requested: 
 

1) Does the proposed amendment permit uses that are suitable in view of the use 
and development of adjacent and nearby property? 
 

2) Does the proposed amendment adversely affect the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property? 

 
3) Will the proposed amendment result in uses which will or could cause an 

excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, 
utilities, or schools? 

 
4) Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and 

development of the property which, because of their impact on the public health, 
safety, morality and general welfare of the community, give supporting grounds 
for either approval or disapproval of the proposed amendment? 
 
 
 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
614-622 E Lake Dr. 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 

                   

Rezoning a property 
 

9. The following standards, per Section 11.2.2.F.1. of the UDO, shall be considered when a 
change to the zoning map is requested: 
 

1) Does the zoning proposal permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and 
development of adjacent and nearby property? 
 

2) Does the zoning proposal adversely affect the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property? 

 
3) Does the property to be affected by the zoning proposal have a reasonable 

economic use as currently zoned? 
 

4) Does the zoning proposal result in a use which will or could cause an excessive 
or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or 
schools? 

 
5) Does the zoning proposal conform with the policy and intent of the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan? 
 
6) Are there other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and 

development of the property which, because of their impact on the public health, 
safety, morality and general welfare of the community, give supporting grounds 
for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal? 

 
Special Exceptions 

 
10.  The following standards, per Section 11.2.4.E. of the UDO, shall be considered when a 

special exception is requested: 
 

1) The suitability of the proposed exception in view of the use and development of 
adjacent and nearby property. 
 

2) The effect that the proposed exception will have on the existing use or usability 
of adjacent or nearby property. 
 

3) The impact that the proposed development will have on the public safety, traffic 
on the public streets, transportation facilities, utilities and other public services. 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
614-622 E Lake Dr. 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 

                   

 
4) The impact that the proposed development will have on established property 

values and on the health, safety, comfort and general welfare of the residents of 
the City. 
 

5) The economic or marketing impact that these guidelines may have on the 
property owner or development. 

 
 

 
  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
614-622 E Lake Dr. 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 

                   

Exhibit A 
Location Map 

 

 
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
614-622 E Lake Dr. 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 

                   

 
Exhibit B 

Existing Zoning Map 
 
 

  
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
  



Planning Commission Staff Report 
March 2022 
614-622 E Lake Dr. 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 

                   

Exhibit C 
Existing Land Use Map 

 
 

Source: City of Decatur OneMap 
 



O-22-Z-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING  

THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN 
 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission adopted an official Zoning Map for 
the City of Decatur on February 4, 1988; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission has considered the proposed  
application and other information submitted by the applicant, as well as comments by the 
applicant and members of the public at public hearings; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission finds that the facts submitted with the  
application and presented at the public hearings establish that the proposed amendment to the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan meets the standards established in Section 11.2.2 of the Decatur 
Unified Development Ordinance; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission desires to amend the Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan. 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commissioners of the City  
of Decatur, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by authority of the same, as follows: 
 
 The land use designation for the property located at 614, 618, and 622 East Lake Drive, 
such property also identified on the attached exhibit “A” as the “subject property,” is changed 
from RL – Low Density Residential to RM – Medium Density Residential. 

 
  
Approved this              th day of             , 2022. 
 
                         Attest:                                        
             Meredith Roark, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
Existing Land Use Map 

 

 
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
 



O-22-Z-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING  

THE ZONING MAP 
 

 WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission adopted an official Zoning Map for 
the City of Decatur on February 4, 1988; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission has considered the proposed  
application and other information submitted by the applicant, as well as comments by the 
applicant and members of the public at public hearings; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission finds that the facts submitted with the  
application and presented at the public hearings establish that the proposed amendment to the 
Zoning Map meets the standards established in Sections 11.2.2 of the Decatur Unified 
Development Ordinance; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission wishes to amend the Zoning Map; and 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commissioners of the City  
of Decatur, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by authority of the same, as follows: 
 
 The property located at 614, 618, and 622 East Lake Drive, such property also identified 
on the attached Exhibit “A” as the “subject property,” is rezoned from R-60 –Single Family 
Residential to RM-43 – Multiple Family Residential. 

 
Approved this            th day of             , 2022. 
 
                         Attest:                                        
             Meredith Roark, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
Existing Zoning Map 

 
  

 
Source: City of Decatur OneMap 

 
 



O-22-Z-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE  
GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED  
AT 614, 618, AND 622 EAST LAKE DRIVE 

 

 WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission has considered the proposed application, 
plans and other information submitted by the applicant, as well as comments by the applicant and 
members of the public at public hearings; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission finds that the information submitted with the 

application and presented at the public hearings establishes that the proposed development meets 
the standards established in Section 11.2.4. of the Decatur Unified Development Ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Decatur City Commission wishes to approve a special exception to 
canopy coverage standards found in Section 9.1. of the Decatur Unified Development Ordinance 
to support the community goal of affordable housing for the property located at 614, 618, and 
622 East Lake Drive; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered this plan in accordance with 

Section 11.2.4. of the Decatur Unified Development Ordinance and recommends approval. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commissioners of the City of 
Decatur, Georgia, and it is hereby ordained by authority of the same, as follows: 
 
 A special exception for a redevelopment project at 614, 618, and 622 East Lake Drive, 
identified on the attached map Exhibit “A” as the “subject property,” is hereby approved. 
 
 
  

Approved this       day of                         , 2022. 
                                                          
 Attest:                                        
             Meredith Roark, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 
  

 
Source: City of Decatur Zoning Map 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 


	March 2022 PC cover letter
	PC Agenda 03.08.22
	PC Minutes 02.08.22 Draft
	_Smarties Academy Application Package (Land Use, Rezoning, Cond Use Permit)
	March 2022 465 Clairemont Ave LU-Zoning change
	O 22 Z XX 465 Clairemont Ave CUP-Smarties academy
	O 22 Z XX 465 Clairemont Ave land use
	O 22 Z XX 465 Clairemont Ave rezoning
	614- 622 East Lake Dr application
	Binder1.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	599_RezApp.pdf
	599_ListOfOwners.pdf

	Owner Authorization - Robert S Wayne - Signed.pdf
	Owner Authorization - Larry Bowens - Signed.pdf
	Owner Authorization - Bruce Robert Cohen - Signed.pdf


	RA_Sweetwater Landing_SD Set_07 (002).pdf

	599_LandUseMap.pdf


	Oakhurst Zoning 02.02.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-301



	599_SignaturesNeededPart2 - signed.pdf

	21273 - ALTA REV 02.04.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24 x 36 (ALTA)


	TheMagnolia.pdf
	TheLaurel.pdf

	20463.pdf

	Oakhurst Park - Inclusionary Housing Plan
	March 2022 614-622 East Lake Dr LU-Zoning change
	O 22 Z XX 614-622 E Lake Dr land use
	O 22 Z XX 614-622 E Lake Dr rezoning
	O 22 Z XX 614-622 E Lake Dr Special Exception



